
2016-08-25 Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Thursday, August 25, 2016 at 4:00 p.m.

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD)

11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 96161



AGENDA
 

12.1. Best Of Community Awards.pdf
 
12.2. Beckers Hospital Review Top 50 CAH CEO to Know.pdf
 

12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT

14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes

14.2. Financial Report

2016-07-28 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
 

14. CONSENT CALENDAR

15.1. 2016 Compliance Program 2nd Quarter OPEN SESSION
Informational Report updated.pdf
 

15. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

17.1. 2016-08-16 Board Quality Committee_Agenda.pdf
 
17.2. 2016-08-08 Personnel-Retirement Subcommittee_Agenda.pdf
 

17. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

18.1. CEO Board Report - August 2016.pdf

18.2.1. COO Board Report - August 2016.pdf
 
18.2.2. CNO Board Report - August 2016.pdf
 

18. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS

2016-08-25 Regular BOD Meeting_FINAL Agenda.pdf
 

ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
 

12.3. Employee of the Month.pdf
 

13.1. Medical Staff Report.pdf
 

14.2.1. Financial Report - Preliminary July 2016.pdf
 

15.2. Creation of a Professional Corporation.pdf
 

16. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF
NECESSARY

17.3. 2016-08-24 Finance Committee_Agenda.pdf
 

18.2.3. CIO Board Report - August 2016.pdf
 

ITEMS 19 - 24: See Agenda

Meeting Book - 2016-08-25 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

8/25/16 Agenda Packet Contents

Page 4

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

Page 10

Page 12

Page 17

Page 30

Page 33

Page 36

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 46

Page 48

Page 50

Page 2 of 52



25. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT

MeetingEvaluationForm.pdf
 

26. ADJOURN

Page 52

Page 3 of 52



Page 1 of 3 
 Denotes Action Item 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday, August 25, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 

11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 
4. INPUT AUDIENCE   

This is an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any closed session item appearing before the Board on this 
agenda. Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Clerk of the Board 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.   

 
5. CLOSED SESSION   

5.1. Conference with Legal Counsel; Initiation of Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(4)) 
Number of Potential Cases: One (1) 
 

5.2. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Report of quality assurance/medical audit committee — 1st Quarter 2016 
Quality Dashboard 
 

5.3. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Report of quality assurance/medical audit committee — 2nd Quarter 2016 
Service Excellence Report 
 

5.4. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Report of quality assurance/medical audit committee — 2nd Quarter 2016 
Corporate Compliance Program Report 
 

5.5. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Gov. Code § 54957.6) 
Agency Negotiator to Attend Closed Session: Jayne O’Flanagan 
Employee Organization:  Employee Association (Licensed) and Employee Association (Non-
Licensed) 
 

5.6. Report Involving Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106)   
Proposed New Program: One (1) item 
Estimated date of public disclosure: 09/01/2016 
 

5.7. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
 

5.8. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 

Page 4 of 52



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 25, 2016 AGENDA– Continued 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

07/28/2016 
 

6. DINNER BREAK 
APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 

 
7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 

 
8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 
10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state your 
name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24 
hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Board cannot take 
action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer 
a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 
 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
This is an opportunity for members of the Employee Associations to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.   

 
12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

12.1. “Best Of” Community Awards 
12.2. Becker’s Hospital Review Top 50 Critical Access Hospital CEO’s to Know 
12.3. August Employee of the Month 
 

13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 
13.1. Medical Staff Report ................................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

 
14. CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar. 

14.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
07/28/2016 ................................................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

14.2. Financial Report 
14.2.1. Financial Report- July 2016.............................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

 
15. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

15.1. Corporate Compliance Program Report ................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will review the 2nd Quarter 2016 Corporate Compliance Program 

Report. 
15.2. Professional Corporation Creation ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

The Board of Directors will review and consider for approval the creation of a Friendly 
Professional Corporation (PC) for the District. 
 

Page 5 of 52



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 25, 2016 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

16. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
 

17. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
17.1. Quality Committee Meeting – 08/16/2016 ............................................................. ATTACHMENT 
17.2. Personnel Committee Meeting – 08/08/2016 ........................................................ ATTACHMENT 
17.3. Finance Committee Meeting – 08/24/2016 ............................................................ ATTACHMENT 
17.4. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in August. 
17.5. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting held in August. 
 

18. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
These reports are provided for information only and not intended for discussion. Any Board Member may request discussion on 
an item, additional information from staff related to items included in a report, or request a topic be placed on a future agenda 
for further discussion. 

18.1. CEO Strategic Updates ............................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
 CEO will provide updates related to his key strategic initiatives. 
18.2. Staff Report(s) 

18.2.1. COO Board Report ........................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
18.2.2. CNO Board Report ........................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
18.2.3. CIO Board Report ............................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 

 
19. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 
20. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 

 
21. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 

 
22. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY  

 
23. OPEN SESSION  

 
24. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

25. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT ........................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Board will identify and discuss any occurrences during the meeting that impacted the effectiveness 
and value of the meeting. 
 

26. ADJOURN   
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is September 22, 2016 at 
11603 Donner Pass Rd., Truckee, CA. A copy of the Board meeting agenda is posted on the District’s web site (www.tfhd.com) 
at least 72 hours prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on 
the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate 
participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or 
other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 6 of 52

http://www.tfhd.com/


Congratulations to
 OUR COMMUNITY'S BEST!

BEST THRIFT
STORE

BEST DOCTOR

Greg Tirdel, MD
Tahoe Forest 

MultiSpecialty Clinics

Tahoe Forest Hospice
Gift & Thrift

Tahoe Forest 
Retail Pharmacy

BEST DOCTOR

Jeffrey Dodd, MD
Tahoe Forest 

MultiSpecialty Clinics

BEST NURSE

Chris Hess, RN
Tahoe Forest 

MultiSpecialty Clinics

Peter Taylor, MD
Tahoe Forest 

Women’s Center

Nina Winans, MD
Tahoe Forest 

MultiSpecialty Clinics

TIED FOR BEST!

BEST 
DOCTOR

HONORABLE
MENTION

BEST HEALTH
CARE PROVIDER

HONORABLE
MENTION

BEST HEALTH
CARE PROVIDER

HONORABLE
MENTION

BEST 
PHARMACY

HONORABLE
MENTION

Thank you to EVERY care provider and staff member who 
works tirelessly to keep our community healthy and strong

...you are the BEST!
Page 7 of 52



Becker’s Hospital Review 

Harry Weis | 50 Critical Access Hospital 
CEOs to Know 2016 
Written by Staff | August 11, 2016  

Harry Weis. CEO of Tahoe Forest Hospital (Truckee, Calif.). Mr. Weiss took over as CEO of 
Tahoe Forest Health System in December 2015. He brings more than 39 years of healthcare 
experience to the hospital system. Mr. Weis has a proven track record of helping 
underperforming medical facilities and is credited with successful financial turnaround of 
Natividad Medical Center in Monterey, Calif., where he implemented nearly $50 million in 
capital improvements. 

  

 

  

RETURN TO FULL LIST 

© Copyright ASC COMMUNICATIONS 2016. Interested in LINKING to or REPRINTING this 

content? View our policies by clicking here. 

To receive the latest hospital and health system business and legal news and analysis from 
Becker's Hospital Review, sign-up for the free Becker's Hospital Review E-weekly by clicking 
here. 
  

Page 8 of 52

http://tfhd.com/
http://www.beckershospitalreview.com/lists/50-critical-access-hospital-ceos-to-know-2016.html
http://www.beckershospitalreview.com/linking-and-reprinting-policy.html
http://www.beckershospitalreview.com/sign-up-for-our-free-e-weeklies.html
http://www.beckershospitalreview.com/sign-up-for-our-free-e-weeklies.html


 

Employee of the Month, August 2016 
Charlotte Hoffman, Registered Dietitian– Dietary 

 
 

We are honored to announce Charlotte Hoffman, Registered Dietitian, Dietary as our 
August Employee of the Month. Charlotte worked tirelessly to pursue her Registered 
Diabetic Educator certification. Her dedication to achieve this goal has brought charisma 
and structure to the hospital through her leadership in the Diabetic Self Management 
Program and Chronic Disease Management classes. Charlotte is working to enhance the 
inpatient and outpatient Diabetes programs in our community. 
 
Charlotte demonstrates understanding through her care to detail in explaining to 
patients their individualized diets. Teamwork is a must when she is working to expand 
the diabetes programs both here at the hospital as well as within the community. 
Charlotte is a true steward through her kindness and patients not only as an educator 
but also as a co-worker. 
 
Charlotte meets and exceeds the definition of the TFHD mission and values but most of 
all has been a key leader in the Diabetes programs in our community. 
 

Please join us in congratulating all of our Terrific Nominees! 
 

Heather Armstrong- IT Help Desk, IT 
Sarah Phillips- IT Help Desk, IT 

Jacki Brennan- Associate Teacher, Children’s Center 
 
 

Page 9 of 52



 
 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
   CONFIDENTIAL  
   PLEASE DO NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE   
  This is a Medical Staff Committee document protected by Sec. 1157 of the Calif. Evidence Code  
 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Wednesday, August 17, 2016 
 

 
REFERRED BY: 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 

OVERHEAD/ 
ATTACHMENT 

 
RECOMMEND 

 

 
MEDICAL STAFF A motion was made, seconded, and carried to recommend approval of the following to the Board 

of Directors: 
1. P&T Committee  The P&T Committee recommended approval of the following (7/27/16): 

Order Sets: 
 OB order sets – Removal of Temazepam 7.5mg from OB order 

sets 
 Penicillin Desensitization - New 
 Intravesicular Chemotherapy – New (for future bladder 

installations).  Reviewed and approved by Dr. Bretan. 
 Adult Diabetic Ketoacidosis (DKA) Order Set - Add Ondansetron 
 Anesthesia Pre-Op Order Set - Addresses the ASA and Surgery 

Class risk screening 
Policy and Procedures: 

 Malignant Hyperthermia Policy – Insulin relocate to cooler 
 Emergency Medications-Crash Carts- APH-9 – Remove sodium 

bicarb from newborn code tray 
 Bioterrorism Pharmaceutical Cache (APH-6)- Eliminate onsite 

cache, use disaster order function from wholesaler. 
 Therapeutic Interchange Policy (DPH-35) - Add Percocet, auto-

sub to Oxycodone 5mg + Acetaminophen 325mg liquid 
Formulary additions/deletions: 

 Atezolizumab (Tecentriq) – PDL-1 Inhibitor for Bladder Cancer 
(added) 

 Temazepam 7.5mg (removed) 
 Flu Mist – (removed due to ineffectiveness) 

Annual approval of P&T P&P’s 
Approval of the timeline for order set revisions – Order sets to be 

 
 
 

Recommend 
approval 

Page 10 of 52



 
 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
   CONFIDENTIAL  
   PLEASE DO NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE   
  This is a Medical Staff Committee document protected by Sec. 1157 of the Calif. Evidence Code  
 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Wednesday, August 17, 2016 
 

 
REFERRED BY: 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 

OVERHEAD/ 
ATTACHMENT 

 
RECOMMEND 

 

 
revised twice per year, unless there are critical revisions needed.  An 
expiration date will be placed on the top of each order set.  This will 
resolve the issue of older order sets being used.  

2. Infection Control Committee  The Infection Control Committee recommended approval of the 
following (7/27/16): 

 TB Prevention and Control In Long Term Care Policy (AIPC-
128) - Revised to reflect the change in frequency of TB 
screening of the ECC residents.   

 Transmission Based (Isolation) Precautions (AIPC-1501) – 
Addition regarding PAPR’s. 

 Recommend 
approval 

3. Department I (OB/PEDS) Department I recommended approval of the following (7/28/16): 
 Antepartum - External Cephalic Version - Procedure section 

was updated 
 Bakri Balloon for Postpartum Hemorrhage Management - Added 

Continuous uterine massage 
 Labor - Intrauterine Catheters Amnioinfusion Guidelines - 

Removal of unnecessary verbiage 
 Labor - Vacuum Extraction Guidelines  
 Neonate - Car Seat Challenge Test 
 CBC GBS modified –Placed in a charting format. 
 WFC - Influenza Guidance for Prevention and Control - 

Approved to adopt CDC’s guidelines 
Department I recommended approval of the following via email on 
8/15/16: 

 Labor - Electronic Fetal Monitoring – Changes to assessing and 
documenting intervals for low-risk patients without oxytocin. 

 Recommend 
approval 

 

Page 11 of 52



 

Page 1 of 5 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Thursday, July 28, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 
North Tahoe Event Center 

8318 North Lake Boulevard, Kings Beach, CA 96143 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 4:06 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:    Charles Zipkin, Board President; Gregory Jellinek, Vice President; Dale Chamblin, Treasurer; 
John Mohun, Secretary; Karen Sessler, Board Member  

 
Staff:  Harry Weis, CEO; Crystal Betts, CFO; Judy Newland, COO; Karen Gancitano, CNO; Ted Owens, 
Executive Director of Governance and Community Benefit; Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 

 
Other:  David Ruderman, Assistant General Counsel 

 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
4. INPUT AUDIENCE   
No public comment was received. 
 
Open Session recessed at 4:07 p.m. 
 
5. CLOSED SESSION   
Discussion was held on privileged matters. 

 
6. DINNER BREAK 

APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 
 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting reconvened at 6:00 p.m. 
 
8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
General Counsel advised the Board of Directors approved the Closed Session minutes of June 23, 2016 
with 5-0 vote.  The Board did not take any reportable actions on any other items. 
 
9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
No public comment was received. 

Page 12 of 52



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 28, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES– Continued 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
No public comment was received. 

 
12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

12.1. Tahoe Forest Hospital named 50 Critical Access Hospitals to Know 2016 
12.2. IVCH Foundation 
12.3. Allison Veliquette was recognized as TFHD June 2016 Employee of the Month 
 

13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 
13.1. Medical Staff Report 

Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Sessler, seconded by Director Zipkin, to accept the 
Medical Staff Report as presented. 

No public comment received. 
AYES: Directors Sessler, Mohun, Chamblin, Jellinek and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
14. CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar. 

14.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
06/22/2016, 06/23/2016 

14.2. Financial Report 
14.2.1. Financial Report- June 2016 

14.3. Contracts 
14.3.1. Gina Barta, M.D. – Hospitalist Services Agreement 
14.3.2. Richard Ganong, M.D. – Hospitalist Services Agreement 
14.3.3. Reini Jensen, M.D. – Hospitalist Services Agreement 
14.3.4. David Kitts, M.D. – Fourth Amendment to Agreement to Provide Emergency Department 

Professional Services  
14.4. Policies 

14.4.1. ABD-11 Fiscal Policy 
14.4.2. ABD-21 Physician and Professional Service Agreements 

14.5. IVCH Foundation Board Member Nomination 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Sessler, to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented. 

No public comment received. 
AYES: Directors Sessler, Mohun, Chamblin, Jellinek and Zipkin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
15. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

Page 13 of 52



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 28, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 5 

15.1. Quarterly Facilities Development Update 
Rick McConn and Mike Geney will provide a quarterly update of the Facilities Development Plan 
(FDP; includes updates pertaining to the Measure C Projects and related Owner and Regulatory 
Scope Modifications.  

 
Discussion was held. 
 

15.2. Citizens Oversight Committee (COC) Update 
Gerald Herrick will provide the Board of Directors with a Citizens Oversight Committee update. 

 
Discussion was held. 
 

15.3. Resolution 2016-07 
The Board of Directors will review and consider for approval a resolution regarding the General 
Obligation (GO) Bond Property Tax Rate Calculation. 

 
Discussion was held. 
 
No public comment received. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Zipkin, to accept 
Administration’s recommendation to use 20% of the General Obligation Bond 
reserve in Resolution 2016-07 . 

Discussion was held. 
Roll call vote taken. 
Sessler – AYE 
Mohun – NAY 
Chamblin – AYE 
Jellinek – AYE 
Zipkin – AYE 

 
The Clerk of the Board was directed to expand the minutes to reflect the Board of Directors’ desire to 
return current taxpayers monies to them while retaining enough reserves to withstand future market 
downturns. 
 
Discussion was held. 
 

15.4. Health & Safety Code Section 32125(b) 
General Counsel will review a memorandum regarding rates for District residents and non-
residents. 

 
Discussion was held. 
 
No public comment was received. 
 
Discussion was held. 

Page 14 of 52



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 28, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES– Continued 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 
16. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
None. 
 
17. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

17.1. Governance Committee Meeting – 06/20/2016 
Director Jellinek provided an update from the recent Governance Committee meeting. 

17.2. Personnel Committee Meeting – 06/20/2016 
Director Zipkin provided an update from the recent Personnel Committee meeting. 

17.3. Finance Benefit Committee Meeting – 06/26/2016 
Director Chamblin provided an update from the recent Finance Committee meeting. 

17.4. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in July. 
17.5. Quality Committee Meeting – No meeting held in July. 
 

18. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
These reports are provided for information only and not intended for discussion. Any Board Member may request discussion on 
an item, additional information from staff related to items included in a report, or request a topic be placed on a future agenda 
for further discussion. 

18.1. CEO Strategic Updates 
 CEO provided updates related to his key strategic initiatives. 
18.2. Staff Report(s) 

18.2.1. COO Board Report 
18.2.2. CIO Board Report 
18.2.3. CNO Community Health and Wellness Neighborhood Update  

 
19. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
None. 
 
20. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
None. 
 
21. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
Assistant General Counsel provided an update that Nevada County District Attorney Cliff Newell’s office 
indicated to General Counsel he will file no prosecution as a result of its investigation into allegations 
against the former Chief Executive Officer, Bob Schapper. 
 
22. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY  
Closed Session did not continue. 
 
23. OPEN SESSION  

 
24. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 
Closed Session did not continue. 

25. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT 
No discussion was held. 

 

Page 15 of 52



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
July 28, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 5 of 5 

26. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

Page 16 of 52



Page 17 of 52



Page 18 of 52



Page 19 of 52



Page 20 of 52



Page 21 of 52



Page 22 of 52



Page 23 of 52



Page 24 of 52



Page 25 of 52



Page 26 of 52



Page 27 of 52



Page 28 of 52



Page 29 of 52



 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 

Board Informational Report 
 

  By: Jim Hook 
Corporate Compliance 
Consultant, The Fox Group 

 
 
   DATE: August 25, 2016 
 
 
2016 Compliance Program 2nd Quarter Update (Open Session) 
The Compliance Committee is providing the Board of Directors(BOD) with a report of the 2nd 
Quarter 2016 Compliance Program activities report (open session).  This report assists the BOD 
to meet its obligations to be knowledgeable about the content and operation of the seven 
components of the Compliance Program. 
  

Page 30 of 52



2016 Corporate Compliance Program 2nd Quarter  
 

OPEN SESSION 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Period Covered by Report:  April 1, 2016 – June 30, 2016 
Completed by:   James Hook, Compliance Consultant, The Fox Group 

  
1. Written Policies and Procedures 

1.1. The District’s Corporate Compliance Policies and Procedures are reviewed and 
updated as needed.  The following policies were reviewed or revised by the 
Compliance Department with recommendations or revisions prior to approval by the  
Board of Directors: 

1.1.1. Code of Conduct/ Non-Retaliation policy. 
1.1.2. Credit Balance Refunds to Medicare within 60 days. 

 

2. Compliance Oversight / Designation of Compliance Individuals   
2.1. Corporate Compliance Committee Membership as of January 1, 2016: 

2.1.1. The Fox Group – Compliance Consultants 
2.1.2. Judy Newland, RN  – Chief Operating Officer/Chief Nursing Officer 
2.1.3. Harry Weis – Chief Executive Officer 
2.1.4. Crystal Betts – Chief Financial Officer 
2.1.5. Denise Hunt – Director of Health Information Management/ Privacy Officer 
2.1.6. Jake Dorst – Chief Information and Innovation Officer 
2.1.7. Jayne O’Flanagan – Chief Human Resources Officer  
2.1.8. Stephanie Hanson, RN – Compliance Analyst 
2.1.9. HLB-Legal Counsel 

 

3. Education & Training 
3.1. All new employees are educated during orientation using health stream 

3.1.1. Starting July 1, 2016 the compliance analyst will be participating in new 
hire orientation to introduce the compliance program.   

3.2.  “Compliance Corner” continues in the monthly employee newsletter providing on-
going compliance education for staff. 

3.3. The Compliance Department has completed one-on-one education with 8 new, 
supervisors, manager and directors. 

 
4. Effective Lines of Communication/Reporting 

4.1. A Compliance log is maintained for all calls to the Compliance Hotline and other 
reports made to the Compliance Department.   
4.1.1. One call was received on the Hotline for the 2nd quarter of 2016.   
4.1.2. Twelve reports were made directly to the Compliance Department for the 2nd 

quarter.  

Page 31 of 52



2016 Corporate Compliance Program 2nd Quarter  
 

OPEN SESSION 

Page 3 of 3 
 

4.2. Potential HIPPA violations are reported to the Privacy Officer.  The Privacy Officer 
maintains a log of reported events.   

 
5. Enforcing Standards through well-publicized Disciplinary Guidelines 

5.1.  83.63% of Health Stream corporate compliance modules were completed on time for 
eligible employees for the 2nd quarter of 2016. 

5.1.1. Human Resource Department is working on an action plan to ensure 
timely completion of modules. 

5.2. All physicians not on staff are checked against the OIG, GSA, Medical and Medicaid 
list of exclusions.  

5.2.1.  A process improvement team was initiated to improve compliance with the 
exclusion requirements.   

 
6. Auditing &Monitoring 

6.1. One audit was completed during the 2nd quarter as part of the 2016 corporate 
compliance work plan.   

6.1.1. Payments to Physicians for Medical Specialty Clinic professional services in 
the 2nd quarter were audited.  There were no discrepancies in the payments 
audited. 

6.1.2. The performance of hospital inpatient coders was assessed by an outside 
organization.  The coders achieved a score of 95% on five aspects of 
inpatient coding in 30 patient records.  

 
7. Responding to Detected Offenses & Corrective Action Initiatives 

7.1. Investigations of suspected and actual breach incidents were initiated.  Several 
investigations revealed no violations.  Remediation measures, including additional 
staff training and updated policies and procedures, were implemented to prevent 
further violations.  

 

Page 32 of 52



1212325.4

 MEMORANDUM 

To Harry Weis 

From  Walter Kopp 
David Henninger 

Dated:  8/18/16 

Re Friendly Professional Corporation 

One of the goals of the ECG report was to potentially establish a “friendly PC”. This 
memo summarizes why TFHD may want to consider forming this new corporation 
now.  

Because of the prohibition on the corporate practice of medicine in California, only 
professional corporations that are owned by physicians may employ physicians to 
provide medical services.  (There are a few limited exceptions to this restriction, but 
none of them apply to TFHD.).  As a result, a commonly used approach to 
establishing affiliations between hospitals and physicians in California is a friendly 
PC.  A friendly PC is a professional corporation the shares of which are owned by 
one or more physicians who are employed by or otherwise closely affiliated with the 
hospital.   The friendly PC may employ or contract with other non- owner physicians 
as well.  The PC typically does not itself accumulate value, but rather it creates a 
platform through which physicians may be employed and provided benefits. 

The space and/or equipment of the PC may be owned or leased by the hospital, or a 
management services organization (MSO”) owned and/or controlled by the hospital, 
and the hospital or the MSO may employ the non-physician staff of the PC.  Space, 
equipment, staff and other services, such as billing and collections services, are 
typically provided by the hospital or MSO to the friendly PC through a management 
services agreement (“MSA”).  Although an MSO may not interfere with the practice 
of medicine by the PC physicians, the MSO may exercise some level of control over 
the PC, within the limits of the corporate practice of medicine restriction, through 
the MSA.   

The establishment of a friendly PC at TFHD could be a positive development because 
we understand that several physicians and new recruits are looking for a way to be 
employed at TFHD.  We understand that the TFHD Board previously authorized the 
formation of a District- sponsored MSO, which could serve as the MSO for the 
friendly PC and enter into an MSA with the PC.  No physician would be pushed into 
participating in the friendly PC, and TFHD would honor its existing contracts with 
other PCs and individuals.  Also, medical groups and physicians may continue to 
negotiate contracts directly with TFHD if they wish.  TFHD may also continue to 
contract with PC’s other than the friendly PC,  but we understand that TFHD’s 

Page 33 of 52



 

1212325.4  

current medical staff physicians do not want to go at risk for forming a new 
professional corporation on their own.  This structure would allow TFHD to contract 
with physicians through the friendly PC, and would provide TFHD with another 
options to work with physicians in a manner that best suits each individual 
physician’s needs.  
 
We understand that TFHD administrative staff have discussed this model with 
several physicians at TFHD and they support this approach, even if they do not 
personally want to join this effort. Some physicians, like Dr. Ephraim Dickinson, a 
new orthopedic surgeon who will join TFHD in November, have stated that they 
would prefer to be employed by a friendly PC and would be interested in joining it 
as soon as it is available.  
 

Page 34 of 52



Tahoe Forest Hospital 
District 

(TFHD)

TIRHR, LLC 

100% owned by TFHD

Tahoe Institute for Rural 
Health Research 501c3

100% owned by TFHD

Cardiac Motion, LLC 49% 
owned by TIRHR, LLC

Tahoe Forest Hospital

TFHS Foundation 501c3

Incline Village Community 
Hospital

IVCH Foundation 501c3

Truckee Surgery Center, 
51% owner

Tahoe Forest Healthcare 
Services

“NewCo”

Friendly  PC 

Page 35 of 52



Page 1 of 2 
 

  

QUALITY COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

Tuesday, August 16, 2016 at 12:00 p.m. 
Eskridge Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Greg Jellinek, M.D., Chair; Karen Sessler, M.D., Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 
54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose 
to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the 
item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 6/14/2016 ........................................................................ ATTACHMENT  
 
6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Quality Committee Charter and Goals 2016 ............................................................. ATTACHMENT 

The Quality Committee Charter and Goals 2016 were approved by the Committee at the February 
9, 2016 meeting.  Review progress toward achieving the established goals. 
 

6.2. Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)  
6.2.1. Patient & Family Advisory Council Update  .................................................. ATTACHMENT 

An update will be provided related to the activities of the Patient and Family Advisory Council 
(PFAC). 

6.2.2. Patient Experience Presentation 
Identify patients that may be interested in sharing their healthcare story at an upcoming TFHD 
Board of Directors (BOD) meeting. 

 
6.3. HCAHPS Star Rating Report  ..................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) has developed HCAHPS (Hospital Consumer 
Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems) star ratings to make it easier for consumers to 
use the information on the Hospital Compare website and to spotlight excellence in healthcare 
quality.  A review of the 10/1/14 through 9/30/15 CMS Star Rating Report and plans for 
improvement. 
 

6.4. BOD Quality & Service Excellence Dashboard  .......................................................... ATTACHMENT 
Discuss the quality and service excellence dashboard and the process for BOD review including 
content, quality metrics, benchmarks, and plans for improvement. 

Page 36 of 52



QUALITY COMMITTEE – Agenda Continued 
Tuesday, August 16, 2016 

 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
6.5. Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program (HFAP) Survey 

An update will be provided on the preparation for the unannounced triennial HFAP accreditation 
survey in the spring of 2017.  The Committee will discuss providing an accreditation survey 
process educational training to the Board of Directors in February 2017.   
 

6.6. Board Quality Education  ......................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Committee will review and discuss key learning points from the following articles: 

6.6.1. Sikka, R., Morath, J., & Leape, L. The Quadruple Aim: care, health, cost and meaning in 
work BMJ Quality & Safety (2015) 

6.6.2. Institute for Healthcare Improvement, Always Events Getting Started Kit (2014).   
  

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE  
The date and time of the next committee meeting, Tuesday, October 11, 2016, at 12:00 p.m. will 
be proposed and/or confirmed. 
  

9. ADJOURN 
 

Page 37 of 52



 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE- 

RETIREMENT SUBCOMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

Monday, August 8, 2016 at 12:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10054 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 
Charles Zipkin, M.D., Chair; Dale Chamblin, Board Member 

 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code 
Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee 
may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, 
or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 7/20/2016 ......................................................................... ATTACHMENT  

 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Multnomah Group Retirement Plan Review 

Committee will review the investments and plan assets for the District’s retirement plans. 
6.1.1. Investment and Investment Menu Review ........................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.2. Plan Asset Review  .............................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
6.1.3. Authorized Plan Representatives 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
7.1. Approval of Closed Session Minutes: 07/20/2016 

 
8. OPEN SESSION 

 
9. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

10. NEXT MEETING DATE 
Personnel Committee will discuss its next meeting date.   

  

11. ADJOURN 

Page 38 of 52



*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

  Page 1 of 1 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
     Wednesday, August 24, 2016 at 1:00 p.m.  

Foundation Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital Foundation Offices 
10976 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Dale Chamblin, Chair; John Mohun, Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code 
Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee 
may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, 
or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 07/26/2016 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT  
 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Financial Reports 

6.1.1. FYE 2016 Review of Multi-Specialty Clinics ...................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.2. Financial Report – Pre-audit June 2016 ............................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.3. Updated Pre-Audit Separate Entities ................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.4. Financial Report – Preliminary July 2016 .......................................................... ATTACHMENT 

6.2. Board Education and Updates 
6.2.1. Audit Update 
6.2.2. RFP for Audit Firm .......................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

 

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

8. AGENDA INPUT FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING ...................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

9. NEXT MEETING DATE ................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

10. ADJOURN 

Page 39 of 52



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

Board Informational Report 

By: Harry Weis DATE:  8/11/16
CEO 

We have been busier on an IP basis this summer to date vs. the prior year, though it’s 
important to note that roughly 73% of our budgeted Revenues come from OP activities.  This 
comment is true for both our Truckee and our Incline Village campuses. 

It is great to see the broader region enjoy a higher resident and visitor population this summer 
as well. 

We are actively searching for a very experienced Executive Director of Physician Services to 
really assist in our journey of every improving and supporting physician services here in our 
system and across this region. 

We have begun our early review of possible Rural Health Clinics as a business backdrop for 
some physician services here and at Incline Village both to honor our commitment to our 
physician teams and to deal with the expanding Medicaid or MediCal business that is occurring 
in our region, across CA and across the US.  This business model is found in nearly all rural 
towns in America so to have none in Incline Village or Truckee is very unusual.  It is the 
backbone of sustainable physician care in nearly all rural towns in America.  Our goal is to rule 
in or out this clinic option during this calendar year. 

We are active in our Master Planning critical strategy to ensure we have the right location, 
space and future space for individual physician practices, patient parking and other hospital 
programs both for the present and for the future.  We hope to reach some major conclusions 
on this segment by the end of this calendar year.  We have many complex variables that are 
overdue for consideration. 

We are also commencing some benchmarking of our operations to other CA healthcare 
facilities to examine opportunities for further operational improvements.  These efforts will 
continue during FY 17. 

We have started a monthly communication to improve awareness and to facilitate a dialog to 
all of our medical staff on a long list of operational and strategic improvements that we need to 
complete over roughly the next 24 months.  These communications are intended to honor our 
commitment to transparent communication with our medical staff in this region.  We have been 
in a reactive mode as we seek to bring our aligned healthcare system principles to a more 
current state with the rest of the forward looking health systems in America. 

Again, we are the fastest 4 to 8 year change era in healthcare vs. the last 100 years, so ideas 
that worked 3 years ago, 6 years ago or 20 years ago, may be very obsolete today. 

Page 40 of 52



 
We are continuing our journey of connecting better with all residents in our region each month 
via multiple types of communications.  We also have upcoming community Town Hall meetings 
to talk about “Fact and Fiction Healthcare 101” sessions.  Watch for the times and dates of 
these public meetings. 
 
We really enjoyed a community get together with our Foundation Board members and their 
significant others at Incline Village this past month as together we focus on honoring the 
residents of that region with better facilities and care in the future. 
 
We are deeply committed to improving the access, care and efficiency of all that we do every 
year!  Every commendation or recognition that we receive as we seek to improve all that we do 
is “simply a thank you back to all residents in our region for the privilege of serving you!”  “All 
that we do is for you!” 
 
We appreciate hearing feedback on our operations as this is highly valuable to our long term 
future.  We also always seek out both sides of any issue or story to make sure we clearly 
understand the issue and what the real facts of the matter are.  
 
We are targeting the start of our Patient Navigation Program,a critical strategy; first in one 
service line by the end of September and then it’s my hope that within 3 to 4 months we can 
take it hospital wide. 
 
You will be hearing a lot more soon from our CIO on our journey to have a leading edge 
electronic health record across our system, which is another critical strategy for our system. 
 
As we are entering a peak political season, we respectfully and humbly ask that anyone who is 
interested in the “real” facts of healthcare come talk to the source on healthcare vs. speaking 
to people “who know of healthcare” but really “don’t know healthcare.”  This path is critical to 
honor all residents in our region for the true path to sustainable healthcare as there aren’t 
multiple paths to sustainable healthcare! 
 
We also valued the time spent with our employees and their families at our annual employee 
picnic on Friday August 12. 
 
We also continue with many other areas of improvement and active engagement at the state 
or federal level on legislation. 
 

Page 41 of 52



Page 42 of 52



Page 43 of 52



Page 44 of 52



Page 45 of 52



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board COO Report 

 
By: Judith B. Newland  DATE:  August 18, 2016 
  
 
 
 
 
The TFHD Laboratory Department had a successful College of American Pathologists (CAP) Accreditation Survey.  
The survey occurs every two year over a three day period.  The purpose of the survey is ensure compliance with 
clinical laboratory regulatory requirements, maintain accuracy of test results, and have a comprehensive 
scientific review of lab standards.  The Laboratory Department had an excellent survey and the Surveyor said 
“they surpassed their excellent survey two years ago.” Congratulations to the Laboratory Department staff for a 
successful and outstanding survey.  
 
This fall, the Tahoe Forest Retail Pharmacy will begin to provide to the community Flu Immunizations, 
Pneumococcal Vaccine and Shingles Vaccine at the pharmacy.  These are new programs for the Retail Pharmacy 
as they begin initiatives to reach out to the community to become their pharmacy of choice.   
 
Construction projects continue on schedule.   

1. At Tahoe Forest Hospital, the Measure C project for Dietary and Women & Family Center are nearing 
completion.  Prior to moving into the new space, both units will require inspection by California 
Department of Public Health.  The open house for the Joseph Family Women and Newborn care is 
scheduled for October 6th.  Additionally, with the near completion of the Measure C projects, more 
parking is becoming available where construction equipment once sat.  Over the next month the Helipad 
and parking area around it is being resurfaced in areas in preparation for the Helipad being open for use.  

2. At Incline Village Community Hospital (IVCH), the siding is moving forward on schedule with a 
completion date in November.  Additionally, the second floor multispecialty clinic changes are 
continuing.  IVCH is hosting an open house and chamber mixer on October 13 to tour the changes that 
have occurred to the hospital over the past 4-5 years.  

 
IVCH had a successful registration of new Sierra Nevada College (SNC) students during their orientation to 
campus on August 15th.  IVCH and SNC have collaborated over the past year to increase knowledge and to make 
access easy for the students to the Incline Health Clinic.  Students were registered in the clinic system and 
provided Blue Life cards.  We look forward to our continue work with SNC to provide access to health care for 
their students and faculty.  
 
The Environmental Services Department (EVS) has implemented a new Quality Assurance Program.  The purpose 
of this program is to assure a strong quality cleaning performance in high touch areas and equipment and 
increase efficiency and improve processes in the department.  The program includes use of a checklist for 
compliance.  Additionally, new uniforms are being worn by the EVS staff that have improved easier identification 
of their service when assistance is needed by patients or visitors. A thank you to the EVS staff for their ongoing 
dedication and commitment to the organization.   
 
 

Page 46 of 52



The Heath System is preparing for our every three year deemed accreditation survey.  A mock survey has been 
scheduled in October for both TFH and IVCH.  This mock survey will identify opportunities for improvement in 
preparation for our 2017 unannounced accreditation survey.   
 
The Health System had a successful presence at Truckee Thursdays.  A booth representing TFHS was staffed for 
two different nights.  Community members were educated to the Patient and Family Advisory Council, Wellness 
Neighborhood, Foundation, and multiple Health System brochures were made available.   
 
 

Page 47 of 52



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board CNO Report 

 
By: Karen Gancitano, RN, MS  DATE:  August 2016 
 Chief Nursing Officer 
 
 
 

  
 
 Strategy Four:  Developing and implementing a comprehensive Care Coordination Plan 
coupled with Patient Navigation for all patients that touch our healthcare system. 
 
Chronic Care Coordination:  Transitional Care Management has started in the MSC this month.  
The care coordinator has 16 patients.  Through this program has been the identification of a 
number of potential Chronic Care Management patients, however; we have not started enrolling in 
that program to date.  The Care Coordinator is working with the staff in the MSC to complete the 
plan for the annual wellness visits.  Resource consumption is a potential problem.  In the TTMG 
Clinics Care Coordination have 10 transitional and 63 chronic care management patients.  There 
are an additional 28 referrals for the Chronic Care Management Program. 
 
We have begun to integrate all wellness, health education, and fitness resources through wellness 
navigators at the Center for Health and Sports Performance.  

a. Medically managed fitness will incorporate navigation and personalization to help all 
members optimize their health. 

 
 
Strategy Five: “Just Do It” Continue to show measureable annual improvements in Quality, 
and Patient Satisfaction.  
 
Patient Satisfaction – The most recent annual inpatient patient satisfaction report has been 
published for 10-1-14/9-30-15.  TFHD has maintained the “4” star rating.  The hospital outscores 
both the State of California as well as the nation in all 11 categories measured by CMS.  Our 
priorities for improvement are the noise level in the patient care areas and the patients’ 
understanding of their discharge instructions.  Action items for improvement include the “yacker 
tracker” as a measurement tool for noise in patient care areas and leader rounding that includes a 
review of the patients’ understanding of discharge instructions. 
 
Bedside rounding has been implemented that includes the patient and their families in hand off 
shift reports.  The rounding includes an introduction of the oncoming nurse and the plan for the day 
including any pending test or discharge needs.  Overall this process has been very well received.  
 
 
Wellness Neighborhood and Community Health – The WN/CH have completed a new brochure 
that catalogs our programs and services titled Rethink Healthy.  The WN/CH will be participating in 
the August 18th Truckee Thursday to share information regarding wellness services, 

Page 48 of 52



immunizations (school and HPV), mental health and suicide prevention resources and events, 
and skin cancer prevention.  Included in the event with be a children’s craft activity. 
 
To enhance the quality of services available to the community the WN/CH continue to grow our 
partnerships and collaboration with the school district, county public health departments and 
community social service agencies allow us to leverage resources and avoid duplication in the 
areas of dental health, immunizations, obesity prevention, and chronic disease management. 
 
And lastly, The Collaborative Alliance for Nursing Outcomes (CALNOC) is pleased to 
recognize hospitals for their exemplary work in reducing hospital acquired conditions. 
It our pleasure to recognize Tahoe Forest Hospital for Performance Excellence in: 

 

Best Performance in Preventing Hospital Acquired Pressure Ulcers 

Best Performance in Preventing Hospital Acquired Infections – CLABSI Total Facility 

Best Performance in Preventing Hospital Acquired Infections – CLABSI Critical Care 

Best Performance in Preventing Hospital Acquired Infections – CAUTI Critical Care 

Best Performance in Preventing Hospital Acquired Infections – MRSA Total Facility 
 
 

Page 49 of 52



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

CIO Board Informational Report 
 

 By: Jake Dorst  DATE:  8/15/2016 

 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 4.0 

 
Epic Mercy /Renown 

 Continuing to refine our proposals and negotiations 
 
Spanish Language Documents  

 In conjunction with wellness neighborhood, working to get all custom Care Notes 
translated into Spanish.  Some are complete. Will be complete in 7 weeks.  This will 
allow all patient education documents to be minimally Spanish/English 

 OCHIN Epic and T Systems Patient instructions are all in Spanish and English 

MD Staff Visit Importer  
 Export files starting today with discharged patients minus 7 days to allow for coding 

M Modal Fluency for Transcription (New Transcription Service) 
 Issues being resolved.  Smooth for first week.  Turnaround times are fast. 
 Header in Varian Software needs a little aligning.  Varian working on that. 
 Unit clerks and others are being trained 
 Clarification communication to doctors. 
 Remapped all speed dials.  Re posted instructions on campus. 

AMION-Physician Scheduling Program 
 Printing of schedules causing problems.  Working with ED, Surgery and IP to assure 

that they have proper processes. 
 Working with directors to get buy in to adopt electronic process without printing. 
 Some ED Physicians-primarily are not pleased about new process due to no longer 

handwriting the schedule on the white board.   
 Have schedule available on ED computers with one click in and no sign on, the easy 

button. 

T System ER software Upgrade 
 Dates established.   

TEST 8/16/16 
PROD 9/20/16 

 Team identified. 
 Requires 8 hour downtime 

Barton Cancer Clinic 
 Technical meeting with Barton held 
 Call with Varian is being scheduled 

 

Page 50 of 52



BoardofDirectors: 042611 BODAg 
 

Medi Mobile 
 7 more Hospitalists will go live by Sept 1st. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 51 of 52



Date:  __________________________________________

Exceed 

Expectations

Meets 

Expectations

Below 

Expectations

1
Overall, the meeting agenda is clear and includes 

appropriate topics for Board consideration
5 4 3 2 1

2
The consent agenda includes appropriate topics and 

worked well
5 4 3 2 1

3
The Board packet & handout materials were sufficiently 

clear and at a ‘governance level’
5 4 3 2 1

4 Discussions were on target 5 4 3 2 1

5 Board members were prepared and involved 5 4 3 2 1

6  The education was relevant and helpful 5 4 3 2 1

7 Board focused on issues of strategy and policy 5 4 3 2 1

8 Objectives for meeting were accomplished 5 4 3 2 1

9  Meeting ran on time 5 4 3 2 1

Please provide further feedback here: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Board of Directors Meeting Evaluation Form

G:\Admin\BoardofDirectors\Forms\MeetingEvaluationForm

Page 52 of 52


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	AGENDA
	2016-08-25 Regular BOD Meeting_FINAL Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
	12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
	12.1. Best Of Community Awards.pdf
	12.2. Beckers Hospital Review Top 50 CAH CEO to Know.pdf
	12.3. Employee of the Month.pdf

	13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT
	13.1. Medical Staff Report.pdf

	14. CONSENT CALENDAR
	14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes
	2016-07-28 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

	14.2. Financial Report
	14.2.1. Financial Report - Preliminary July 2016.pdf


	15. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	15.1. 2016 Compliance Program 2nd  Quarter OPEN SESSION Informational Report updated.pdf
	15.2. Creation of a Professional Corporation.pdf

	16. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY
	17. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	17.1. 2016-08-16 Board Quality Committee_Agenda.pdf
	17.2. 2016-08-08 Personnel-Retirement Subcommittee_Agenda.pdf
	17.3. 2016-08-24 Finance Committee_Agenda.pdf

	18. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS
	18.1. CEO Board Report - August 2016.pdf
	18.2.1. COO Board Report - August 2016.pdf
	18.2.2. CNO Board Report - August 2016.pdf
	18.2.3. CIO Board Report - August 2016.pdf

	ITEMS 19 - 24: See Agenda
	25. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT
	MeetingEvaluationForm.pdf


